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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

TRUSTEES' REPORT

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's repert of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2024, The arinual report serves the purposes of
both a trustess' report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Harbour Learning, Trust, formerly Healing Muiti Academy Trust was formed in.March 2014. In seven years it-has
grown from a single academy to seven primary academies, two secondary academies and a School Centred
‘Initial Teacher Training-(SCITT) which are located in two hub areas:

1. Gfimsby, North East Lincolnshire

2. Lincolnshire-

- ) Harbaur Leaming Trust

s @ Healing Science Academy

- . {Dealing Primary Schoot

@) Lincolr Caslle Academy

D Ermine Acadecy

@ Honsholme Academy

(D Great Ceates Primary Schoo!
{5-\) Wondlands Academy

;€D wiliam Bareroft Junior School
: % 51 Giles Acaitemy

{"" EOE Teacher Training

Going forward the Trust wishes to work with schools and trusts who have.a similar ethos of plaging children.at
the heart of all decision’ making. The geographical -location of any new schiool would ideally be within a
reasonable. travel time of any Harbour Learning Trust Academy. The Trust is not actively seeking to grow in the,
immediate’ short term. Instead, it is focussing on -ensuring all the pupils. in the Trust are receiving the- best.
education experiences as possible with outcomes across the Trust fising to be at least in line with the national
average and every academy is Ofsted good or outstanding. That said; should any schoot wish 16 join thie Trust
which would add resources and capacity to the Trust, the trustees will consider each one of these cases on -an
individual -basis.

The Trust has-a pupil capacity of 4,745 and 4,351 on roll at ifs Primary and Secondary academtes i the school
census dated October 2020.

During the academic year 2020/21 the Trust introduced a new vision and values with a shortened tagline of
“Succession and’ happmess for every child".

Members also agreed to change the name of the Trust from Healing Multi Academy Trust to Harbour Learning
-Trust with effect from 1 September 2021..

‘STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

‘Harbour Learilng Trust is a company limited by guarantee (incorporated in August 2010) and is-an exempt
charity. The charitable company's memorandum and Articles of Association {April 2014) are the primary
governing ‘dacuments of the academy trust. The Harbour Learning Trust trustees are also. the directors of the.
charitable campany for the purpose of company law. The charitable company is known as. Harbour Learning.
Trust.

The Articles of Association require the' members of the charitable company to appoint at least three trustegs-to be
responsible for the statutory and constitutional -afféirs of the charitable company and the management of the
Trust. ‘ '




HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULT! ACADEMY
TRUST)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Details.of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these financial statements are.approved, are
tncluded in the Reference and Administrative. Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable ¢ompany. underfakés to contribute: to: the assetsof the. charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while thiey are a meinber, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amaunt.as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before:they ceased to be
a member,

Trustees' indemnities

Subject to the prows:on of the Compames Act 2008, ‘every trustee and officer is indernnified against any habihty
incurred by them In their capacity in defendmg any proceedings whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is
given in favour or in which they are acquitted or in connection with any app[:catlon in whlch relief is granted to
them by the couft from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the. affairs of
Harbour Learning Trust. During the period the Academy also purchased and maintained liability insurance-for its
Trustees through the Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA).

Method. of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees
The types of frustees and. their recruiiment, tefri and appointment is set out within the Articles of Association and
Scheme of Delegation. The members of the Trust.during the year were:

1, ABeach (resigned 13 October 2021)

2. G Bratby (appdinted 13 February 2020

3. J Gdblden (appointed 4 December 2019)

4. G Walker (resigned 14 October 2021}

5. L Charlesworth-Browne (appointed 17 January 2022)

The Members may appoint up to twelve trustees through such process as they may determine: The total
number of trustees,.including the CEO, 'who are: employees of the. Company shall not exceed one third of the
total number of trustees. As of 1st January 2021 there are no staff trustees. Board members.and trustées act
collectively and they do not have individual executive autharity. The Trust Board has delegated fo the CEQ, all
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company. Where a matter is not specifically reserved to the
Board, the CEO has authority to act.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

All new trustess will continue to receive training on school improvernent, charity law, governance, HR, IT
(including cyber securily), estates (including H&S), fegal and financial matters. All new trustees will be offered a
tour of the trust's ‘academies and have the opportunity to meet studehts, staff and local -academy council
representatives and receive copies of relevant -policies, procedures, latest minutes, financial statements ‘and
" other key docurrients they require to undertake their role effectively as.trustees..




HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

TRUSTEES" REPORT {CONTINUED)

Orgamsafuonal structure
The governance structure of the Trust is on two levels: The Trust Board and its subcommittees {including Local
Academy Councils), Subcammittees are outlined in more detail in the governance section.

The Trust Board i$ responsible for the strategic decision making of the Trust.. The Trust Board of Directors is
responsible for ensuring that high standards of educational outcgmes for students and corporate govemance.are
maintained. It exercises its powers and functions by addressing such matters as school improvement,
safeguardmg govérnance, policy and strategy development, financial reporting and planning, monitoring and
reviewing all areas of performance and making longer-term decisions about the directors of the Trust and senior
staff appaintments.

The Trust Board's responsxbllmes are:

1. Ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and sirategic-direction;

2. Holding executive leaders ta account for the.educational performance of the organisation and its pupils-ahd
the.effective and efficient perforrnance management of staff, and

3. Overseeing the financial performance of the organisation and making sure: its money is well spent in terms
of régularity, probity and propriety.

4. The Board must be ambitious for all .our childrer and young people, share a passion: for education and
strong commitment-to continuous school improvement that enables thé best possible outcomes. Regular
internal scrutiny of controls, anid making small but progressive improvements, is a powerful way to further
progress and continue to meet our objectives.

Harbour Learning Trust included nine academies, a Teaching School ahd a SCITT as at 31st August 2021.

These are as follows:

Name Date Joined Type
Ermine Primary Academy 1 September 2019 Primary
Great Coates Primary School 1 June 2016. Primary’
Hartsholme Academy 1 November 2018 Primary.
Healing Piimary School 1 Septermber 2014 Primary
Healing School, A Science - 1 September 2014 Secondary
Academy
Lincoln Castle-Academy 1 September 2013 Secondary
-St Giles Academy 1 November 2018 Primary
William Barcroft Junior Sehool 1 March 2017 Primary
Woodlands Academy 1 November 2018 Primary

The Trust Board sets out the Trust Group Strategy and operatiorial policy in key. areas which are-then applied
within and across all the academies through the Scheme of Delegation.

The CEO appointed on 1 January. 2021.is not a Trustee but is the accounting officer for Harbour Learning Trust.
The-Accounting Officer, on behalf of the Trust Board takes persanal responsiility for :assuring compliance with

the Academies Financial Handbook, the master Fundmg Agreement and all relevant aspects of Company and
Charitable law.




HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

The CEO, with support from the Executive Team, have delegated authority under-the Trust Board guidance, for
the overall organisation, management and staffing of the organisation and for its procedures in financial and
other matters, including conduct-and discipline.

The GEO and Executive Team provide overall leadership of the Business Services Team and the Principals..

The Executive Principals, in addition to the CEQ, work across the academiés to support and inform- the
production of the Academy Improvemerit Plans and quality assure and monitor ‘student achievernent and
progress, providing challenge to Academy Senior Leaders.

Along with the CEO, ithe CFO and other directars, the Trust Board will receive advise on finance, HR
management and Capltal Wark Provision (including Health and Safety) and Data Protection.

A-Scheme of Delegation has been put in place by Trustees for all Trust academies. It is intended to provide
absolute clarity about the duties, roles and responsibilities of all partles in the Trust in order to secure effeclive
systems of leadership, management and operation to manage risk effectively and secure requlred outcomes.

The Scheme.of Delegation also specifies the level of financial coiitrol for Trust Board, CEO; Executive:Team and
Academies. ’

For the avoidance of doubt where any extant Trust policy conflicts with the Scheme of Delegation, then the
Scheme shall-take precedence. In all issues of interpretation, the decision of the Chief Executive, in conjunction
with the Chair of the Trust Board is final. Where policies and procedures. are not included in the Scheme of
Delegation, these are a matter for the Chief Executive and - where apprepriate the Trust Board.

The Trust Board will set.out the arrangements for assuring financial compliance through internal and external
audit process,

Harbour Learning Trust supports its academies through'the Executive Team-and Business Services Team, known
collectively as the Central Corporate: Team {CCT) and has two. functions: Academy: Performance and Support
Services. Each academy contributes a proportlon of its income to fund these core services. A percentage was
set at 4.75% -9.75% across-all academies and is reviewed annuaily by the Trust Board.

The CET monitors and supports the work of academies to help ensure consistent practice across the group. It
has wide ranging responsibilities across all-its academies. for assurlng and ensuring educational improvement
and for providing key business services as agreed by the Trust Board, -especially in the areas of finance, HR and
recruitment, compliance: (ingluding data protection), facilities, ICT, data ‘and marketing and communications.

The CEO dr their representative will report as app”ropriate to each Trust Board Committee at times throughout
the academy year. These reports will provide information on the progress of the academies CCT and thée actions
.of the ' CCT. The academy principals will contribute te this reporting process.

All members of the CCT are ultimately accountable to the CEO but the board appoints the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) The CEC quality assures the work of the CCT; and is.overall responsible for the recruitment of staff and

ensuring adequate training of CCT members and is accountable for this to the Trust Board. The CCT will support
and inform the production of Academies’ Improvement Plans. The CCT'’s own Development Plani will reflect the
priorities of the group members and be reviewed and adjusted annually against improvement priorities set by
'Harbour Learnmg Trust and the CEO; The CEO and their representatives actively participate in local
govemance:

The SLT at each academy differs depending on.need and could include Executive Piincipal, Principal, Head of
Academy, Vice Principal and Assistant Piincipals and { or Associate roles. These leaders control the Academy at
a local level implementing the policies approved by the Board of Trustees and CCT and reporting back to them.
As a group the Senhior Leadership Team academies is responsible for the- authorisation of spending within agreéd
budgets Some spending control is devolved to members of the Middle Management Team, but &l expenditure
is countersigned by SLT or at certain levels the Care Finance Team, CFO/COQ and CEQ,
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Executive Team referred to on page 1 are also classed as key management personnel for the purposes of
reporiing under FRS102. The salary scales of the Executive Principals are set, with reference to the School
Teachers Pay and Conditions dacument and guidance published by the Department for Education (DFE}, by the
Trustees.

Remuneration of key management personnel is considered .and determined by the trust board. The trust
continues to manage the remuneration of key personnel using salary benchmarking. This benchmarking
considers trusts. both locally and nationally based on their similar size, educational peridrmance and financial
performance. Trustees recéive reports.regarding rémuneration ingluding. ESFA publications.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of ermnployees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period -
Full-time.equivalent emplayee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time .

Percentage.cf time Nummber-of employees
0% -
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100%- -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill -
Percentage of the fotal pay bili spent on facilty time -

Pajd trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities.as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours- -

No trade union facility time has been recorded
during the year. '

Related parties, connected charities and co-operation with other organisations’

Owing to the nature of the academy trusi and the compdsition of the board of trustees drawn from locat public
and private sector organisations, transactions. may take place with organisations in- which trustees. have an
interest. Alf transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook, including:notifying the ESFA of all transactians on or after 1 April 2079.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
This content is included uader that heading within the strategic report section.
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Engagement with employees ‘ .
Harbour Learning Trust recognises the importance of effective commmuriication with-all key stakeholders.

Harbour Learning Trust recognises, respects and values diversity in the workforce and is committed to promoting
and achieving equality of opportunity. How this is achieved is articulated in the Trusts Disability Equality
Scheme. In addition, our Recruitmerit and Seléction Procedures eutlines how the Trust adherés to the Equality
Act, -ensuring all re[evant equal opportunities legislation is adhered to and that all applicant and-appointees are
not discriminated against.on the grounds -of any protected characteristic.. Reasonable adjustments are. put in
place to support potential candidates through the recruitment process and into employment. Support for
employees who experience health concerns is available via.the Education Support Partnership or a referral fo
Oceupational Health via HR.  Where an employee develops a disability during their employment, the Trust will
ensure that there are no physical barriers, such as access to disabled toilets, which would make their life at work
more difficult. Other barriers-such as negative attitudes from other staff making assumptions that the disabled
person is unable to carry out certain activities will be addressed via various Trust HR policies.

Removing these. barriers creates. equality and offers disabled people more .independence, choice’ and control,
Training and career development of staff with a disability will be proactively managed via the appraisal process.

The Trustees' of Harbour Learning Trust ensure infarmation is communicated both directly, and through the CEO
Executive Team, aimed at: ‘ h
* Providing employees with information on matters of concern:to them
. Consulllng employees or their representatives regularly so ‘that the views of employees can ‘be considered
in making decisions which are Ilkely to affect their interests
» Epéouraging the involvement of employees in the company's petformance
= Achieving-a common awareness.on the. part of all employees of the factors affecting the performance of the
company

During this period, the Trust has taken the following actions to engage and consult with its employees:
« The publication of a regular MAT updates during the COVID lockdown period to -ensure all relevant
information was shared with stakeholders.
+ Encouraging staff representatives to sit on each Local Governing Bady
* Undertaking a staff survey

At a sfrategic level, the CEO holds Executive Team meetings with Senior leaders. At an academy level senior
leadership teams meet regularly, there -are staff briefings and training and development fime. Academy family of
schools’ meetings are held regularly with senior leaders representing every academy, members of the Executive
Team -and members of the corporate Business Services Team meet to share best practtce and updates on
development. in their areas. Performance. data on student outcomes is shared, discussed and chajlenged: at
these meetings.

The Trustees reéogmsed that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice within the
workplace. The Trust-is committed to equél opportunity in all ‘areas of its activities including creating a working
environiment in which the-contribution and needs. of all people are fully-valued.

Employment of disabled persons

Lifts, ramps and disabled toilets- are installed and door widths are adeguate to enable wheelchair access to all
the main areas of the Trust estate, where possible: The.policy of the Trust'is to support recruitment and retention
of students and .employees with disabilities. The Trust does this. by adaptlng the. physucal aenvironment, by
making resources available and through traiining and career development.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)

‘Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust
The Trustees of Harbour Learning Trust ensure they have- had regard fo the need to foster the company’s
business relationship with suppliers, customers and others. The Trustees, with guidance from the CEQ and
‘CFO/CQOO0 have ensured al! decisions have regard to’

* The likely consequences of any decision in the long-term

* The interests of the company s employees

« The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers. and others

* The impact of the customer’s operations on the-community and the environment
The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct.
‘The need to act fairly as-between membersof the campany

The CFO/COO oversees the Trust's business. contracts and regular contact with suppliers is maintained through
the Trust's central finance team and individuai schools’ business managers.

The Trust ensures public funds are maximised and that the Trust's résources and purchases provide the best
value for money during each academic year.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The Trust's objectives are set out in the Articles of Association. The Articles of Association clearly define the
primary ‘objéctive and activity of the Trusf as:

+ To advance for the public benefit education in the United' ngdom, in pamcular but without prejudice.to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing. malntammg, carrying on, managing and developing'schools (‘the-
fainstream Academies”) offering a bBroad and balanced curriculum or sducational institutions ‘which: are
principally: concerned with providing full-time or part-timeé edueation for children of campulsory school age
who, by reason of lliness, exclusion from schoal or otherwise, may not for any period received suitable
education unless alternative provision Is made for them (“the alternative provision Academies”) or 16 to 19
Academies offering a curriculum appropriate to- the- needs of its student (“the 16 to 19 Academies”) or
schools specially organised to make special educatiort provision for pupils with Special Educatioriai Needs
{("the Special Academies”).

Our Mission ‘
To educate all children to the highest académic standard in-an inclusive supportive environmerit to allow them to
fulfit their potential and become responsible and caring adults of the future.

The Harbour Leaming Trust vision and shortened tagline are:

We seek to inspire greatness in evéry-child -and to equip them with the academic achievements, life skills and’
personal attributes to lead happy, safe, successful Jives.

‘Success and happiness for every child’

Our Trust-Values

We are child-centred. ‘We make decisions based on what is right for our children and their life chances.

We are inclusive.-We believe that every child can be successful regardless of bagkground or ability.

. We-are ambitious. We aim for excellence in ali-that we do.

We act with integrity. We promote respect and trust; we value different pomts of-view and beliefs. We
actively reject discrimination, racism, bullying, deceit and dishonesty.

We are collabarative. We work in partnership with all stakeholders: including parents, carers and the wider
comrmunity ensuring a sense of togetherness.

6. We value aur staff. We invest extensively in ouytstanding training and development opportunities.

.U" PN
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Objectives, strategies and activities
The strategic priorities for 2020-21 were:

Govern: d fisk ma

« The impact the Trust has on its academieés, including what elements of education are uniforin across the.
Trust; where the Trust allows academies mare autonomy and how ths frust reduces underperformance

* How the MAT trustees work with the MAT leadership, including how they set priorities and how they
constructively challenge leaders

» How the Trust Board and Local Governing Bodies recognise when and why a school may be judged-as a
grade 4 or grade 1

« How MAT leadeérs and managers have put in place effective arrangements for safeguarding

School improvement and developing people
* The way in which MAT leaders lead the trust; including how staff recruitment, development and

management work across the Trust

+ How the Trust monitors its academies, especially how it understands the quality of education heing
offered and its impact ‘

= How policies are made, implemented and reviewed, including how curriculums are designed and
reviewed;.and the impact they have. What the Trust's intentions and ambitions are, especially in relation
to its curriculum, and how these are communicated, understood, implemented ‘and monitored across the
Trust

= How the Trust identifies its strengths and weaknesses, including in terms-of the teaching within individuaf
academies, and how the Trust résponds

Finance and school resource manaqement

» How effective is HR, finance and estate management functions that closely support schoo!s to allow
leaders 1o retain their focus en school impravement

+ Indvidual School Development Plans synergise with the Tiust-Strategic Pian, enabling us 16 support
Iocal schools. to |mprove ihe outcomes. The Trust's careful growth strategy seeks to provide a local
solution to school effectiveness, working in partnership with the Regional Schools Commissioner

« The key priorities for each school are set.out in their School Development Plan and will be. closely
monitored-by their Local Governing Body who will report to the MAT Board of Trustees

The trust strategic plan for 2020-21 is informed by:
* The evaluation of key KPIs
+ Regional and natiofral impératives, statutory changes and best practice (Academies Financial Handbook
revisions, and Ofsted updates)
+ Strategies to develop the trust’s stage of maturity to.a trust where resulfs are consistently ‘embedded’
+ Intemnal and external evaluation, including SIP.reports, peer review & stakeholder feedback

At each board meeting, the objectives are measures against milestones and progress discusseéd.

-10--
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The table below shows the headline data for pupils. / students:

Primary |NOR R-8| Girls { Boys | Pupil |Minority |Englishas| SEN |SEN School
Academy % % | Premium} Ethnic an Support | EHC ) Deprivation
% Groups | Additional % % Indicator
% Language
%
Ermine 422 467 | 53.3 48.6 10 9:5 14 exc. | 4.7 | 36{Quintile’
4.7% 4)
EHCP
Great’ 297 (+33] 44 56 35 5 4 10 6. | 2nd Quintile
Coates nursery)
Hartsholme | 402 46 | 54 39 13 4.5 16 3 |Lowest20%
{01
{Quintile 5}
Healing: 351 65 45 7.4 9.4 6.3 51 1.1 Quintile 1
St Giles 392 49 51 57 26 19 19 3.5 0.37
_ {Quintile. 4)
William 310 48 52 51 3] 4. 19 k) Quintile:§
Barcroft
Junior
Woodiands: 300 54 46 44 9 9 12 2 0.52
Secondary | NoR | Giiis | Boys | Free | Minority | Englishas | SEN | SEN School
Academy % %. | School | Ethnic an ‘Support { EHC | Deprivation
Meals % |Groups %| Additional % %. Indicator
Language
%
Healing 989 | 48 52 10 12. 54 586 1.5 Top-20%
School
Lincoln 859 | 49.8 | 50.2. | 31.05 1.1 1.24 13.7 3 | Top5-10%
Castle.
Academy-

Public benefit '
Learners are ‘admited in accordance with the admissions policy agreed with the DfE. Learners are admitted
fram a wide range of backgrotnds. The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the requcrements of
section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the public benefit-guidance. published by the Charily

Commission for England and Wales.

~11 -
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and performance A A

The Trust recognises the important role that Ofsted plays in monitoring standards, The profile of our academies
is still variable across the Trust but each academy continues to strive for improved outcomes. for every child.
Inspections during the academic year were-limited due to COVID restrictions and no academy in the Trust was
subject fo an inspection. er visit. ' ' '

Academy Last Ofsted judgement Date of Ofsted
inspection
Ermine Primary Academy Inadequate May 2019
Great Coates Primary Good’ May 2019
School
Hartsholme Academy Inadequate June 2018
Healing Primary School Good May 2017
Healing School, A Science Qutstanding June 2008
Academy
Lincoln Castle Academy Good March 2016
St Giles Academy Inadequate October 2017
William Barcroft Junior ‘Good. February 2020
Schaol
Woodlands Academy Inadequate -October 2018

During the year the Trust Board's focus was on strengthening the capacity at the Trust to deliver school
improvement to all academies within the Trust. This included the creation of a new Executive Team led by the
CEO and included a new Exécutive Principal Primary and the CFO/CCO.

During the academic year 20/21 the education -of pupils and students was once again disrupted due to the
ongoing COVID pandemic.

In the academic year 19/20 the governmen{ announced {here would be no exams for key stages 2, 4 and 5. This
‘'was the case again for the académic’year 20/21.

However, we have included detail in-this report in respect of the trust feacher assessments far KS2 and the
centre assessed grades for KS4 and KS5.

-12-
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Secondary Academies.

Thetablebelqw shows the Teacher Assassed Grades for 20/21 alongside the Centre Assessed Grades for 19/20
and the external KS4 restilts publishied for 18/19.

% English -& Maths 4+ %o. Eng@ & Maths 5+
1819 | 19/20 [0/ 18/19 19/20-  |#EE2
Healing ‘School 82 80 57 63
Lincoin Castle- Academy 35.80 | 54.20 13.30 27.50

Primary Academies

SAT's tests were cancelled in all schools in 2021 due to the ongoing COVID18 pandemic. The table below
shows the Teacher Assessed Grades for Key. Stage 2 for 20/21, 19/20 and the externally examined SAT's resuits
for 18/19 and. 17/18.

%Reading % Writing %: Maths %, RW&M Combined
17/ 181 |19/]20/2 17/ [ 1871|1972 (2072} 17/1 | 18/1 1 19/2[:201211:] 17/18 |18119{19/20{20/23;
18] 19120} g |o 8|90
Ermine 66 | 57 | 69}; 65 | 64 70 | 73 | 68 60 | 43 | 58
Great 72| 72 |69 | 76 | 71 84|90 |74 67 | 69 | &3
Coates
Hartshoime | 68 | 65.] 63 |: 67 | 65 60 |.61 | &1 48 | 48 | 48
Healing 100| 84 |94 |: 93 | 90 100| 93 | 88 o8 | 84 | 88
St Giles 47 | 48 |55 73| 53 50 | 68 | 61 29 [ 45 | 50
William 59|72]83 82| 83 88| 84 | 86 60 | 67 | 78
Barcroft
Juriior :
Woodlands | 61 | 57 | 78 [ 71 | 78 {i66:] 64 | 59 | 82 53 | 51 | 69
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TRUST)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remote Learning

In its redpening guidance, the DIE outlined an expectation that all schools would, by the end of September 2020,
have the ¢apacity to offer immediate remate jearning in the event of a locatl lockdown or whete a cldss, group or
smail number of pupils needed to self-isolate. At the end of September, the DfE strengthened its stance by-
publishing a temporary continuity direction under- the Coronavirus Act 2020, stating that all state-funded scheol
age children must be provided with ‘immediate access to remote education’ ‘should they miss school due fo
coronavirus. The DfE said the direction was ‘ta provide legal certainty for all involved in the ‘education sector' by
making clear the legat duty of schools in this-respect. That direction came into force on 22nd October 2020 and
was to have effect'uniil the end of that year, unless revoked by a further direction.

On the 18th August 2021 the Secretary of State for Education issued a Temporary Continuity NG.2 Difection for
the Coronavirus Act 2020 Provision of Rematé Education (England). The.direction requires that where.a class,
group of pupils, or individual pupils need to selfisolate, or there are local or national réstrictions requiring pupnls
to remain at home, schools are expected to provide immediate access o remote education. The Direction also
requires schools to have regard o .our expectations for remote educat}on These are set out in the ‘Statutory
obligations-and expectations” section 6n Get Help with Remote Education, This direction will have effect from the
start of the academic year 2021/2022.

As a Trust we have developed and refined our approach to remote learning. All academies had -a' blended
remote iearning offer’ where ¢hildren were able to access both live lesson and pre-recorded fessons anngsnde a
number of other resources. Staff were provided with fraining and- support to-help develop dnd deliver. the rémote-
leaming offer.

A sigriificant number of laptops, -over 500, were made available to children across the trust for both staff and
students te borrow if they didn't have access to appropriate technology at home.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

COVID19 update

All children returned to school as planned in September 2020. Some phasing of students took place in both’
primary and secondary academies to §upport social distancing and new pupils as they entered the academy.
Unfortunately, there was -2 retum 1o a second nalional Jockdown in November and then a third lockdown:
announced from 6th Janyary 2021. All our academies reopened on 19 April 2021 and have remained open to all
pupils since,

Rigorous risk assessments were put in place and were reviewed and updated waekly by the priricipals..Since the
return of all student's academies have been carefully tracking the progress of all pupils and ensuring gaps in
learning have been addressed through changes:to the curriculum and additional intervention and support for
indented need.

Throughout this pandemic attendance. has. remained a pricrity for the academies @nd Principals, supported by
the Executive Principals have worked hard to ensure children are back in schools and learning.

The Execulive Team also supported its academies, their Principals and the trust to manage the impact of
€OVID19 through:

Regular meetings with Academy leaders.

Regular updates to-Audit and Risk and Board

Detailed-Academy risk assessments / plans

Providing classioom leaming as well as remate based learrning for pupils and students. Reriote learning

has been provided through a combination of printed ‘home leaming' packs as well as through use of the:

Trust's IT facilities

* Providing additional ‘catch up' support for targeted groups of pupils and students

« Regular monitoring of pupit / student engagement and wellbeing’ (mcludlng safeguarding) particularly for

remote study
Regular monitoring of staff safety-and wellbeing through line: management structures
" Revised financial forecasts for 20/21 and updated business pians for 21/22
+ COVID19 absences were monitored on a-daily basis during the-academic year of 20/21 with information
collated to aliow for further analysis and reporting up to. the Ccre Team. Within the académies

themselves, government guidance was. followed and’ advice from Public. Health sought regularly and
where necessary Risk assessments were-updated weekly. Year group and class bubbles were.
implemented with strict-hygiene praclices.to aveid the spread, along with all areas being ventilated

+ Year groups and classes were closed when necessary and remote lsarning: took place. Closures were
avoided-at all costs with doubling up of classes ta avoid this, implemented if possible

«+ Extra cleaning products were ofdered and more cleaners (6r extra hours. offered) employed in the

academies to work during the school day as opposed to evenings. All extra curricular activities such as

fixtures ‘and trips/visits were cancelled

¢ o & o

Promoting the success of the charitable company:
The Trustees of Harbour Learning Trust always act in a way to promote the success of the company; and in
doing so have regard to:

= The likely consequences of any décision in the ong term

+ The interests of the company’s employees

* The need to foster the company s business relationships with suppliers, customers-and others
.» The impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

« The desirability of the company imaintaining a reputation for high standards of businéss conduct

« The need to act fairly as between members of the. company

The Trustees achiave this through the engagament of a media consultant to work with local media outlets fo
publish ariicles that promote positive stories, community projects and achlevements of pupils and staff within
schools and academles across the Trust, The Trus! and individual schools also produce regular newsletters that
are-published on their websites. and.are sent out to parents, carers and the local community. Schools in the Trust
utilise numerous platforms to promote positive. gctivities and achievements including Facebook and Twitter.

f
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income is-obtained from the Department for Education (DIE) / Educahon and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the Use of which is restricted to- particular purposes. The grants
received from the DfE / ESFA during the 'year eénded 31 August 2021-and the associated expenditure are shown
as restricted funds:in the statement of financial activities. The Trust also receives.grants-for fixed assets from the
OfE / ESFA.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, total expendlture of £29,350k was more then covered by recurrent grant
funding from the DIE / ESFA together with incoming resources.. The excess of incorhe over expenditure for the
period, excluding restricted fi xed asset funds and-the pension fund was £224k.

‘At 31 August 2021 the net book value of fixed assets was £36,597k and movements in intangible and tangible
fixed .assets are shown in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of the Trust.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board, of trustees have a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to conlinue in operational existence for the. foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continties to -adgpt the going goncern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can-be found in the Accounting Policies.

The trust has been .able to accommodate additional costs in relation to the COVID19 pandemic through sound
and effective financial management, eventually showing an outturn on general reserves (restricted and
unrestricted funds) of £224k. This was delivered through effective budget planning and utilising additional grarit

income provided by-the DfE.
Management Accounts are reviewed and signed off by the trustees each monh..

Cash balances are reviewed regularly and reported fo the Accounting Officer each week. Cash days remain
healthy and a budget/cashﬂow has been prepared for the period up to 31 January 2023 as well as budget
forecasts up to 31 August 2024,

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

There is a deficit in the pension schieme of £18,610k as disclosed-in riote 26. The Secretary of State has agreed
that in the-event of the Academy Trust closing, the Local Government Pension Scheme liabilifies would be met
by the Department for Education.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)

Reserves policy

The level of resérves to be held by the trust overall Hias been considered using both trustee knowledge and
experience coupled with-best practice from CIPFA Treasury Management (in public sefvices) and NPC Charity
Financial Analysis.

The. Trust's free réserves are its funds. after excluding restricted funds. The amount of unrestricled: reserves
available at 31 August 2021 was £1,771k (2020: £1,973k) Restricted reserves of £1,220k.(2020: £794k) are also
available for the Trust to carry forward. Thierefore, total reserves availableto spend doing forwards are-£2,991k
{20202 £2,767k).

Reserves are therefore the resources the trust has or can make available to spend for any or all of the Trust's
purposes once it has met its commitments and, covered its other planned expenditure. The Trust aims to set
balanced in-year revenue budgets annuaily for each academy, with any surplus held against each academy for
their investment to improve teaching and leaming within each Trust academy.

The palicy of the Trust is to.carry forward a prudent level of resources. designed. to meet the long-term cyclical
needs of renewal ang other unforeseen contingencies. The Trust aims to have target levels of free reserves
across the Trust of 12% of the-annual GAG income; for 2021 this gives a target of £2,447k. The Trust therefore
has a healthy leve! of reserves at the end of the year, Wwith free reserves of £2,991k. This lével of reserves is
being held to confribute - towards. future capital- builds across the Trust's estate and to safeguard against uncertain
future funding.

Of the total Restricted Fixed Asset fund reserves of £38,178k, £36,597k can .only be realised by disposing of
fixed assets.

Investment palicy

The Trust Finance, Audit & Risk (FARC) is responsible for approving the Investment Policy and. has on-going
responsibility-to ensure mohitoring and review -of any investment. investinents 'shouid be made to’ further the
trusts charitable aiths but must ensure that:investment risk is properly managed. No long term) investments -are
held. The trust current only hold low risk investment accounts with HSBC on immediate and short notice returns
which; enable the Trust to receive a. higher interest return, to maximise the Trust's Income, without putting the
capital value at unacceptable.risk. THe investrient objectives based on prudence are:

» To achieve best financial.return available whilst erisuring that security of deposits takes precedence; over
revenue maximization

+ Only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the
trust bank account becomes overdrawn

« By complying with this policy, all investment decisions' should be exercised with care and skill arid
consequently be in the best interests

While the Trust has. an investment policy, the Trust presently has no furids invested. All funds are with in current
accounts or instant-access accaunts.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key performance indicators .
The Trust analyses performance by undertaking:
= Reguiar benchmarking exercises, but like for like comparisons have been difficult at times due o the unique
nature of the sites, ongoing building projects and timescales for emergency work
+ Budget monitaring, identifying surplises and deficits if any, enable the Trust to allocafe funds accordingly
and report to the Trustees
» Forecast Budgets: and Monthly Management Accounts presented regularly during the year to the Trustees,
show the present position of the Trust's Reserves and report all variances. mcludmg Capital Reports
monitoring the Trust’s Assets
= Financial checks by external accountants to monitor the Trust's Financfal Management throughout the year.
These reports are sérutinised.and discussed by the Trustees at every Audit and Finance Committee meeting
+ Cash flow reports on variances are presented fo the Trustees at each meeting
* Long-term financial plans for the individual schools

The Trust has :a robust system of interrial financial contiols which require each academy to set a budget and
monitor performance- against this budget at every meeting of the finance, audit and risk meeting.. The
management accounts with budget comparisons’is prepared each monlh and formally received and signed off
each month by twustees. Large variances are invesligated and notes for same provided.

Plans for future periods

The Trust-expanded on 1 September 2019 to nine schools incorparating. Lincoln-Castle Academy and Ermine
Primary Academy from ‘The Academy of Lincoln Trust. The Trust ptans to consolidate to ensure we are
focussed on providing the maximum suppoit to ensure puplls in every ohé of our academies receive the very
best education, however we will always carefully cansider future opportunities. We will promote the sharing of
best practice within.and across all. of our academies to ensure we'raise_the aspirations and outcaomes for all

pupils.

The Trust will continue t6 evolve our Trust model to maximise the impact of our school improvement strategy.
The Trust will contiriue to ensure our business functions, including HR and finance: are delivered to a. high
standard as effectively and efficiently as possible.

The Trust will review and evolve our curriculum approach to-ensure all pupils.a broad, balanced but ambitious
curriculum that balances- jong term knowledge acquisition with targeted support for specific pupil needs.

The Trust will continue to facus on thé development, retention and recruitment .of staff through our training and
professional development programmes.

-18 < {



HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties which the trust faces over the next few years dre:

» Educational, health and finangial implications created by the COVID pandemic

= Appoiritment of a.new COFO role and the- ability to émbed. the cernitral corporate team to offer'an efficient and
effective centralised service )

« The edicational and financial implications arising: from a poor ICT infrastructure due to a lack of investment
over a significant-number of years

* The ability to recruit and retain staff due to geographicai locations

+ increasing competition from local schools who.are part of much bigger:academy chains

« The abiliity to deliver high quality s¢hool irriprovément to ensure.‘inadequate’ schools within the trust continue
to develop

«+ Reputational risk due to loss of Teaching school status and the SCITT due to govémment reform

+ The reputational risk to the Trusl as its outstandmg school has not been subject to an Ofsted inspection
since 2009

* The reputational risk to the Trust.of being unable to retajn and refresh skills and experience to ensure we
have highly effective governors and trustees

» The financial and reputational risk ta the trust of not keeping all of the states within the trust safe, secure and
compliant

A live' and working trust risk register has been developed, it is updated by -executive on a regular basis-and the
update is presented at each finance, audit and risk- meeting. There are plans to develop a board assurance
framework in early 2022.

COVID19 uncertainties )

The pandemic has had an extreme impact on '20-21, with schools closing to all pupils and children from 6
January- 2021 until 19 April 2021, aithough academies remained open to. key workers and vulnerable children
throughout the pandeinic.

The Trust will need to spend more to ensure that all schoo! sites remain. COVID19 secure -and that remote
learning ‘including the provision of devices are fiom pupils and ‘students where bubble closure means. self-
isolation.

These additional expected costs for staffing, cleaning, and health and safety such as masks, hand sanitisers and
additional IT costs were difficult to estimate when budgets were set, but it may be that reserves may have.to be
used if additional government funding. is not forthcoming. Academies also- saw a reduction in catering income.
which will affect budgets in.21/22,

Fundraising

Academies in the Trust carry -out a limited amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which they
operate. In the circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems .and contiols are in place to separate
and protect funds. The Trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social
Investment) Act 2016 and legal rules, and.ensures all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership
Team level in compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure that fundraising
is open, honest and respectful, protectmg the public from undue pressure to donate. The Trust does.not work
with professional fundraisers or compames who carry out fundraising ob its: behalf

Streamlined energy and carbonreporting

, 2021 2020
Energy consumption kWh kWh

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 4,888,872 4,869,892
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2021 2020

Emissions.of CO2 equivalent metric fonnes metric fonnes
‘Scope 1 - difect emissions

- Gas combustion: -439.85 426.33

--Fuel consumed for owned transport 251.72 268.18

691.57 6594 .51

Scope 2 - indirect emissions

- Electricity purchased 31227 331.72
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for tranisport-not owned by the

academy trust 7.83 16:.13
Total gross emissions 1,011.67 1,042.36
intensity:ratio

Tonhes COZ2e per pupil 023 . 0.23

Quantification and reporting methodology
An evidence-based methodalogy was. adogted in accordance with BS EN iSO 14064-3:2019, Section 4.3;
verifiable data.has been collected from the following sources;

Energy Data: Energy Metering, Invoices, Supply Summaries | Statements, Repayment Claims for busingss
mileage, Fuel Cards, and cofrespondence with suppliers.

Previous Audit Data: SO 50001, CRC, ESOS Phase il .and Display Energy Certificates.

Emission Conversions: All emission factors for CO2 have been calculated using Défra Conversions, the carbon
content of the District Heating Schemes has been provided by the energy supplier(s).

Intensity measurement
The chasen intensity measurement ratio is tatal gross emissions in nietric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector,

Measures taken {6 improve ehergy efficiency
New boilers were instalied at Healing Primary Academy ahd William Barcroft Academy -and Woodlands Academy
and Ermine Academy have both benefited from LED lightirig.

Lincoln- Castle Academy has a mechanical and' eléctrical survey being carried out over October 2021 half term
which will provide recommendations with a view to making energy savings.

Minibus travel-along with staff travel has also been reduced dug to COVID19 travel restrictions..

Now, that we are-in receipt -of reports and surveys in relation to building condition, health & safety :and
mechanicat and electrical, the board in conjunction with trustees will be draft a strategy for streamlined energy
and carbon reporting. This will include implementing measures to improve ‘energy efficiency:

Gas combustion has increased during the year in response to the Government eagemess to keep schools open
during the pandemic, windows were left open thus utilising more gas.
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AUDITOR
RSM UK Audit LLP was appointed auditor to- the charitabje company. A resplution proposing re-appointment will
be put to the members.

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor

The Trustees have confirmed that, as far as’ they are aware, there is.no relevant audit information of which the.
alditor is unaware. Each'of the Trustees have confirméd that they have taken alf the steps that they ought to
have taken as Trustees in order fo-make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to:establish that
it has been communicated to the auditor.

The Trustees' report is approved by order of the Board of Trustees and the strategic report {included therem) is
approved by the Board of Trustees i in their capacity as-the directors at a meeting on 25 January 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of respoansibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have ‘overal} responsibility for ensuring that Harbour Learning Trust (Formerly
Healing Multi Academy Trust) has an- effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise.
However, such a system is designed to. manageé rather than eliminate the risk ‘of failure to achieve business
.objecttves and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guldance in DfE's Governance Handbook and.
competency framework for govemance.

“The Board of Trustees has delégated the day-to-day responsibility to the principal, .as Accounting Officer, for
-ensuring financial ‘controts conform with the requiremerits of both prapriety-and good fi nancial management and
in accordance with the réquirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Harbour Learning Trust (Farmerly Healing Muiti Academy Trust) and the -Secretary of State for Education. The
Accounting Officer is also responsible’ for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The infarmation on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in..the
statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has. formally met 8 times :during the year.
Attendance during.the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows;

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
C Cherry {Appointed 16 December 2020) 7 7
KEllis 7 8
P Kipling 5 8
L Kitchin 8 8
M .Knapten (Resigned 31 December 2020) 2 2
J Lovelle {Vice Chair) 8. B
G Padbury (Appointed-16 December 2020 and resigned 2 March
2021) 2 2
D Peers (Chair) 8 8
1 2

G Walkér (Resigned 31 December 2020)

In October 2020 Peter Kipling stepped down as Vice Chair and Jonathan Lovelle was appointed as. his
successor. Chris Cherry was appointed as Trustee-on 16 December 2020. Gavin Padbury was appointed as a
Trustee on 16.October 2020 but resigned as of 1 March 2021. Graham Walker resigned his post of Trustee as of
31 December 2020 and Mark Knapton resigned his post as CEQ, Accounting Officer and Trustee as of 31
December 2020. Jo Notan was appointed as CEQ. and Accounting Officer as of 1. January 2021 but was.not
made.a Trustee. .
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The coverage of the work of the Board

The Trust Board i$ ultimately respornisible for everall control and direction, “inchiding the monitoring of
performiance and resaurces. The Board ensures that the Trust operates effectively and within the agreed terms
of our internal governance- and upholds the approved vision and values. Trustees are accountable to-external
government agencies including the Department for Education (DE) and Charity Commission {CC} for the quality
of the education they provide and have systems in place through which they can assure themseives:of quality;
safety and good practice.

The Board delegates other matters to ils sub-committees (set out below) and execulive powers which are
recorded in the Scheme .of Delegation. The development and implementation of new consistent’ and
standardised school improvement model and processes under the leadership of the new Chief Executive has
provided. Trustees with further oversight .and offéred greater scrutiny into outcomes and the use of resources.
Thie Trust continues to review its govemance structure and Trustees. against DfE, CC and Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA} guidance.

Governance reviews

During the year the Trusl has undértaken a comprehensive review of its governance structure, membership to
the: board"(and its sub-committees) including the composition of each trust sub-committee and the remit of each
committee.

The Board has also cohstructed a Chair of Committee, People and Welfare Committee, Education Committee,
and a Governance-Liaison:Committee along with the remaining Audit, Risk, Finance and Estates Committee. The
Governance Liaison Committee is to allow the Chairs of the Local Academy-Councils and Academy Executive
Boards to meet with key Trustees with the intention of i improving the informatioh flow.

The Board:ackiowledge that it has been a difficult year and in particular have faced a challenging period during
the Covid Pandemic. The Board have continued to meet, through the use of information technology, to ensure
the necessary challenges and scrutiny ‘are still-applied.

The Audit, Risk, Fnance and Estates Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees, lis purpose
isto:

+ Uphold financial integrity and manage the audit-cycle

Support the Trust's Strategic Plan, to agree estates priorities. and monitor business delivery and health and

safety compliance across the Trust and to receive reports on non- compliance

Advise on the adequacy 6f financial and other controls and risk-management arrangements

Direct a programme of internal scrutiny

Consider the results-and quality of external audit

Regularly. review management accounts with the CFO and highlight variances including any proposed

actions réquired to address any adverse variances from the budget

Recommend exceptional investmient / sperid to the Trust-Board in line with levels of authorisétion

+ Review the estates of the Trust and consider opportunities for development for recommendation to the Trust
Board

* Regularly review management accounts relating to capital funds including grant funding

+ Monitor delivery of éstates and health and safety' management and challengé areas of under-performance

*
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
C Cherry {(Appointed 16 December 2020) 2 4
K Ellis: 3 6
P Kipling 1 6
L Kitchin 8 6
M Knapton (Resigned 31 December 2020) 2 2
J Lovelfe.(Vice:Chair) 6 6
G Padbury (Appointéd 16 December 2020 and resigned 2 March,

2021) 1 1
D Peers (Chair) 4 6
G Walker [Resigned 31 December 2020) 2 2

The People and Welfare Committee is.a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:

» Provide support and challenge on ali Employment and HR ‘matters

Ensure salaries recommended by the line managers of senior staff ‘are justified and In fine with sector
averages

Monitor the: ansisteney of job evaluation for- all support staff ahd senior executives

Review buslness cases'/ rationales for pay increases of senior staff as per the Scheme of Delegation
Oversee the professional development of all employees in the Trust

Review and monitorstaff-welfare across the Trust

To._review Single Central Record audit reports and offer reassurance to the Trust Board that the Single
Central Record has been audited at least annually

¢ & 0 o o

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

€ Cherry (Appointed 16 December 2020)
K Etlis

P Kipling

L Kitchin

M Knapton {Resigned-31 December. 2020)
J Lovelle (Vice Chair)

D Peers (Chair)

G Walker (Resigned-31 December. 2020)
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The Education Committee is a sub-commitiee of the main Board of Trustees. ‘lts purpose is to provide as
follows:

+ Provide a balance of challenge and support to the Executive Team on the academic performance of the Trust
and its academies

» Review academic targets to ensure they are ambitious for alt pupils

+ Monitor progress and challenge areas of under-performance '

+ Consider ‘external reviews and make- recommendations to the Trust Board regarding intervention in areas of
concermn

+ Review SEND Policy and recommend to Trust Board ‘

+ Review Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and recommend to Trust Board
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as:-follows:

Trustees

C Cherry. (Appointed 16 December 2020)
K Ellis, ‘
P Kipling

L Kitchin

D.Peers (Chair)

Meetings attended

WR DN

Out of possible

LR

The Governance Lialson Committee is a 'sub-committee of the main Board of Twstees comprised of the Chair,
Vice-Chair and Chair of the sub-committees. Its purpose is to provide: as foliows:’

- Ensure synergy between the Trust Board and Locat:Academy Councils (LAC's) ‘
- Promote and facilitate. Liaison between the Trust Board and lLccal Academy Councils and to support

governance within each Academy

* Report to Trust Board priorities fram Local Academy Councils and Academy. Executive.Board

Attendarice at meetings. in the year was as follows:

Trustees

C Cherry. (Appointed 16 December 2020,
K Ellis

P Kipling

L Kitchin o

J Lavelle (Vice Chair)

D Peefs {Chair)

Attendance of all meetings.during 2020 - 2021 was as follows:

Trustees

G Cherry(Appointed 18 December 2020).
K Ellis

P Kipling

L Kitchin

M Knapton {Resigned 31 December 2020)
J Lovelie (Vice Chair)

G Padbury (Appointed 16'December 2020 and resigned 1 March

2021)
D-Peers {Chair) '
G Walker (Resigned.31 December 2020)

Review of value for money

Meetings attended

— ek e OO =S

Meetings attended
15

16

11
20

5
16

3
18
4

Out of possible

P QT T I QT G Y

Out of possible
18

22

22

22

i)

18

3

22

5

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that thé academy- trust delivers good value inthe
use-of publicresoutces. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the-educational and
wider societal outcames achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value formoney during
each academic year; and repoits to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, lncludlng the
use of benchmarking data where. appropriate. The Chief ExecutiVe as an Accounting Officer is personally
responsible for the regularity and propriety of publie funds and.ensuring they are. consistent with the purposes for
‘which they are intended.

The Accounting Officer has delivered improved value for maney during the year by:
+ Reviewing -and updating the Scheme of deiegation in¢luding reviewing financial authority and delegated

financial limits

Introducing a robust vacancy.authorisation procéss and a change‘to contract authorisation. process

Reviewing all SLA and contracts and introducing a new robust approval system

Restructuring the-central team to ereate a more efficient and effective 'service to acadernies:

Instigating a trust wide buuldmg conditioning report

Instigating full Health-and Safety reviews across all academies to ensure DICG funding is planned spending

against need

Reviewing the external auditors and recommending changes to the board and meribers

= Reviewing safeguard provision across.the Trust and implementing & Safeguard SLA for services across the:
Trust

+ Creating Executive Principal posts to support all the Principals with' school improvement and remioving the
need for external consultants

'« Instigating a variety of reviews. of ICT -acioss the Trust.to protect against cyber-attacks and improve cyber
security

» Recruitment to shared posts.across primary schools and the secondment of:staff

= Review of the-curiculum and the staffing needs in both primary and secondary phase

’ o & a

The purpose of the system of internal control

The. system-of internal control is designed. to manage fisk 1o a reasonable Ievel rather than to eliminate all risk- of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. it can therefore only provude reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectivenéss. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritisé’ the risks to the achievernent of academy ‘trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood.of those risks being reafised and the impact should théy be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The sysfem of internal control has been in place in Harbour Learning Trust
(Formerly Healing Multi Academy Trust) for the: period 1 September 2020 to 31 :August 2021 and up to‘the date
of approval of the ‘annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk. '

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
opel"atmg. ‘financial.and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there .is a. formal angoing process. for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has bieenin place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and finaricial statements. This process is regulariy reviewed by the
Board of Trustees. :

The risk and control framework.

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a. framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and:a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

» Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems Wwith ‘an annual budget arid periodic financiat reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the-Board of Trustees

= Regular reviews by the Finance, Health and Safety Sub-Committee of each Local Gaveming Body with full
delegation (up to:31 March:2021) of reports which indicate financial perfarmance against the forecasts and
of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

« Setting targets to-measure financial and ofher performance

» Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. ldentrﬁcatlon -and management of risks
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

Internal scrutiny

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal scriitiny function and decided:
-+ To appoint Sireets Chartered Accountants as internal sérutineer
« To develop internal scrutiny to consider not only areas. of finance but go beyond this into other areas of
non-finance activity and operations .
- To seamiessly link the risk register and work of internal scrutiny to better understand the assessment of
risk and then the risks and opportunities faced over time.

With a change of Acgounting Officer and scheme of delegation during year, the executive became aware that
there were potentially some.weaknesses in the area of purchasmg and procuremenit and fequested the recently
appoirited internal scrutineer Streets-Chartéred Accountants to review. This internal scrutiny work was conducted
and onefundamental recommendation in this area (around purchase order controls) was raised which the Board
has put an action plan in place to address.

During the period between September 2020 and August 2021 ‘Streets Chartered Accountarits have also
undertaken reviews of payroll, purchasing and financial processes compliance against-the new Scheme of
Delegation only using a Traffic Light system. Some low and medium risk recommendations were raised,
management have discussed and action plans aresin place.

In addition to the work undertaken by -Streets Chartered Accountants, the following reviews were. completed-as
part of the overall risk- management pracess.

March-2021 — General review report (peer review) — Northern Education Trust

March 2021 — IT condition survey (peer review) — Northern Education Trust

March 2021, June 2021 — Police cyber vulnerability initial report and follow up report

June 2021 ~ Gonditions surveys (Buildings) — Sanderson Weattierall

July 2021 - Follow up 1T Infrastructure Report (peer review) — Northern Education Trust.

July. 2021 — Health & Safety Audits — Ermine and Lincoln (the remaining schools completed in 2021/22) ‘Cope
Safety Management

July 2021 — Fire Risk Assessments — Faithful & Gould: A

August 2021 ~ Fire-Compartmerit Surveys - Faithful & Gould

All the above reports have: been presented to management and trustees and actions are being out in place-to
address shon,comings.

The academy trust can confirm the internal scrutineer delivered their schedule of work as planned.

Findings- have been reported back to the Board. All issues identified have been picked up by the relevant
business services Directors.and are being actioned.

Review of effectiveness
As Accountmg Officer, J Nolan has responsibifity for reviewing the effecnveness of intemal control. During the
year il questicn the-review has been informed by:
* The work of the.internal scrutineers
* Findings-frém iridependent third party assurance reviews
+ The work-of the external.auditor
+ The financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school rescurce management
self-assessment tool
+ The work of the executive managers within the académy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenarice of the internal control framework
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
conirol by the Audit, Risk, Finance and Estafes- Committee and a plan to -address weaknesses and énsure
continuous improvement of the systemis in place. .

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 25 January 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Harbour Learning Trust (formerly Healing Multi Academy Trust), | have considered my
responsibility to notify the academy trust Board of Trustees and the Education.and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms: and conditions of alfl funding received by the
academy trust, under the fundirig agreement in place between the-academy trust'and. the Secretary of State for
Education. As part. of my- consideration { hiave had due fegard to the réquirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the academy frust's Board of Trustees are ablé to identify any material irregutar or improper
use of funds by the ‘academy trusst, or iaterial non-compliance- with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020,

I corifirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have beendiscovered
to date. If any instances .are identified after the date of this: statement these will be notified to the. ‘Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

Accodnting Officer

25 January 2022
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING M'ULT‘I ACADEMY
TRUST)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees (who are also the directors of Harbour Learning Trust (formerly Healing Muiti Academy Trust) for the
‘purposes of company law)-are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report {including the strategic report) and:
the financial statements. in accordance with the Académies Accsunts Direction published by the Education and
Skills Funding-Agency: United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally. Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial -statements unless- they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expendxture for that period.

in preparing these‘ﬁ_nanmal stalements, the Trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods.and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021; .

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK. Accounting Standards have. been followed, subject to any material departures.
disclosed and explained in the finaricial statements; and

» prepare the financial stateménts on the doing concem basis unless' it is- mappropnate to: presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees. are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient fo show and explairi
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy.at any time the financial position of-
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also. responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct-and operation the charitable: company applies
financial anid other contrals, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for
the ‘purposes intended,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the.corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 25 January.2022 and signed on its behalf by:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HARBOUR LEARNING
TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY TRUST)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Harbour Learning Trust {formierly Healing Multi Academy Trust) (the
"charitable company”) for the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities,
the Balance Sheet,'the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, in¢ udlng significant
accounting policies: The financial reporting framework that has been -applied in'their preparation is applicable faw
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK-and Republic of fréland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financial statements:

- give a frue and fair view of the state of the charitable: companys affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, mcludmg its income arid expenditure, for the year then
ended;.

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the. Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Directiori 2020 to 2021 issued by the.
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We. conducled our audit in ‘accordance with international ‘Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responSIbllxtles under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilies for the audit
of the financial staiements sectiori of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in a@ccordance
with the: ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statéments in.the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that.lhe audit evidence we have.obtained is sufficient and appropriaté. to providé a
basis for our opinion. ’

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded .that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the: preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable: company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a pericd of at least tweive. months from when the financial statemerits are
authorised for Issue.

Our responsibilities and the' responsibliities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in‘ the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other informatiori comprises the information included in the: annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustees' are responsible -for the other information contained within the
ahnual report. Qur-gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the-other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclision thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information -and, in doing so, consider whether the.other information is
materially inconsistent with the finangial statéments or our knowledge obtaihed in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or. apparent material
misstatements, we are required to’ determine: whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial.
statemernits themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this ‘other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HARBOUR LEARNING
TRUST (FORMERLY: HEALING MULTI ACADEMY TRUST) (CONTINUED)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our opinion, based on the work undertaken in'the course of the.audit:

- the information.given in the Trustees' Report, which includes the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report
prepared for the purposes. of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report included within the Trustees' Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal reguiremenis.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its-environimerit obtained in the.
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' Report or the Strategic Report
included within the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us fo report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not begn received
from branches not visited by us; or '

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting.records and refurns; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- ‘we have riot received all the information and explanations.we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set-out on page- 30, the Trustees (who act
as trustees Tor the charitable activities of the charitable company are alsc the difectors of the charitable company
for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation ‘of the-financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a-true and fair view: and for such interpal control as the Trustees determirne is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or errcr.

In preparing the financial statements; the Trustees are responsible for-assessing the charitable: company s abillty
to continue as a going concern, dlsclosmg, as applicable, matters related to going concern ‘and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to- liquidate the charitable company or to-cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives. are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements’as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue- an auditor's réport that inciudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance.is a. hlgh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaterent when it exists. Misstatements ¢an arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in. the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users. taken on the basis of these financial statéments.

The extent to which thé audit was considered capable of detecting irreguiarities, including fraud
lrregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws. and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on
the determination-of material @mourits and disclasures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to
help Identify instances of non-compliance with other laws angd regulations that may have a material effect on thie
financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations identified during the audit.

in relfation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the iisk of material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatenient due to-fraud through designing and 1mplementlng appropriate responses, and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the alidit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governange; to
ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws -and regulations and
for the prevention and detection of fraud.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HARBOUR LEARNING
TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY TRUST) (CONTINUED)

tn identifying and assessing risks. of material misstatément in respect of iregularities, including fraud, the audit
engagement team:

» obtained-an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and regulatory framework that the
charitable company operates in and how the: charitable. -company is complying with the legal and regulatory
framework;

» .inquired of management, and those charged with govemance, about their own identifi cation and assessment
of the risks of irregularities, inciuding any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

» discussed .matters. about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud mjght occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to.fraud.

As a result of these: procedures 'we: consider the most significant iaws and regulations: thal have-a direct impact
on the financial statements are FRS 102, Charities SORP (FRS 102), Companies Act 2006, Education and Skills
Funding Agencys Academles Financ!a| Handbook and Anrival Accounts Difection. We performed audit
procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial ‘statements which
included reviewing the financial statements including the Trustees' Report.

The ‘most significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impacton the financial statements are those in
relatiori to the Education [nspection Framework under the Education Act 2005 {as amended), Keeping Children
Safe in Educatlon under the Education Act 2002, the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and
the Data Protection Act 2018. We.performed audit procedures to inguire of management whether the charitable
tompany is in compliance: with these law -and regulations and inspected correspondence with regulatory
authorities in order to draw a conclusion.

The .audit engagerment team identified the risk of management override of controls. as the area where the
financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed
included but were not limited to testing manual journal -eritries and other adjustments, evaluating the  business
rationiale in relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into -putside the normal course
of business, chatlenging judgments and estimates.

A further description of our responsibilifies for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc:org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
-auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a biody, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies. Act 2006. Our audit' work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in. an -auditor's report and for no other
purpose, To the fullest-extent permitted by law, we do nof accept or assume responmbnhty to anyone othér than
thecharitable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report; or
for the opinions we have formed.

Richard Lewis (Seniar Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Two Humber Quays

Wellington ‘Street West

Hull

wimn g4| e
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Unrestricted Restricted Restrictéd -Total Total
Funds General Fixed Asset 2021 2020
Funds Funds
as restated

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 5 - S 4,353 1,358 1,139
Donations - transfer of existing
academy into the trust - - - - 8,275
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations € 303 25,990 - 26,293 24,107
--Funding for teaching school 6,28 - 459 - 459 441
Other trading activities 7 70 - - 70 137
investments, 8 - - - - "
Total 373 26,454 1,353 28,180 . 34,110
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: o _
- Educational operations 10 468 27,246 1,223 28,937 27,965
- Teaching schooi - 413 - 413 339
Total 9 468 27,659 1,223 29,350 28,304
Net income/{expenditure) (95) (1,205) 130 {1,170) 5,806
Transfers between funds 20 {107) 107 - - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actyarial losses on defined benefit ‘ _
obligations 26 - {3,758) - (3,758) (1,227)
Néet movement in funds (202) (4,858) 130 (4,928) 4,579
Reconciliation of funds
Tolal funds brought forward (as ‘
restated) 1,973  (12,534) 38,048 27,487 22,908
Total funds carried forward 1,771 (17.390) 38,178 22,559 27.487




B ‘ Company Number 07345756
HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021
2021 2020
as restated
. Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets’ 15 15 22
Tangible assets 16 36,582 37,434
36,597 37,456
Current assets
Stocks 7 A
Debtors , 17 602 651
Cash at bank-and in hand . 5,863 5,404
. 7472 6,066
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due: within one. . .
year 18 {2,900) (2,707)
Net current asséts. 4,572 3,359
Net assets exciuding pension liability 41,169 40,815
Defined bengfit pension scheme liability 26 (18,610) {13,328)
Total net assets 22,559 27 487
Funds of the academy trust:
 Restricted funds 20,
- Restricted fixed asset funds 38,178 38:048
- Restricted income funds 1,220 794
- Pension reserve (18,610 {13,328)
Total restricted funds 20,788 25,514
Unresfricted income funds 20 1,771 1,973
Total funds- 22,559 27,487

The financial statements on pages 34 to 65 were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for fssue on
‘- January 2022 and are signed on their behalf by:"
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST).

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2021 2020
as restated

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows froim operating activities
Net cash provided by/(used in}.operating
activities ) 23 470 (461)
Cash funds transferred oh conversion - 1.124

470 663

Cash flows from investing.activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments - 1
Capital grants from DfE Group 1,182 268
Capital funding recéived from sponsors and others 9 -
Purchase of tangible-fixed assets (202) (222)
Net cash provided by investing activities 989 757
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting. period 1,459 1,420
Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of the-year 5,404 3,984
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6,863 5,404




HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

General mformatlon

Harbour Learning Tmst (formerly Heailng Multi Academy Trust) is a charitable company. The address of its
principal place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations-are set out in the Trustees'
report.

A summary of the principal accountmg policies. adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted); judgements and key scurces of estimation uncertainty, is sét Gut below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust have been prepared under the historical cost-convention in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {(FRS 1.02),
the- Accounting -and Réporting by Charities: Statement of Reécommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their finaricial statements in actordance with the.Financial Reporting Standard applicable in-the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the- Charities Act 2011 and the Gompanies Act 2006. The academy trust is
a pubhc benefit entity under FRS 102 and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of
FRS 102.

The financial ‘statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional currency of the -academy
trust,

Monetary amaounts in these financial statements are rounded to- the nearest whdle £1,000, except where
otherwise indicated.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of the going concern basis.of accounting is appropriate, ie whether
there. are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the charitable comipany to continue as a going concern. Based on cashflow forecasts prepared,
the Board of Trustees have 'a reasonable expectation that the academy ‘trust has the resources to
adequately operate for a period-of at least 12 monthis to 31 January 2023. The academy trust has also
prepared budget forecasts to 31 August 2024 ‘which have been considered in the Trustees assessment to
support the going concern conclusion adopted. In addition, the Trust operates with a manageable- liguid
cash balance and manages Income and payments closely to-ensure: any potential. risks to this are. identified
early. At the year-end cash -at bank is £6,863k. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a peried
of at least one year from the date-of authorisation forissue of the financial:statements 'and have cancluded
that the- academy trust has:adequate resources’ to -continue in opérational existence for the foreseeable
future' and there-are no material uncértainties: about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going
concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting preparing the financial
statements.

The trust has been able to ‘accommodate additional costs in refation to the Covid-19 pandemic through
sound and effective financial management, budget planning and utilising additional -grant income provnded
through the DFE. The trust expects similar budget pressures in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic going
forward, it is expected that any additional costs will be met from DFE grants and internal resources.

Income
All incoming respurces are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable: and the amount can be measured reliably.
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HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Grants

-Grarits .are included in the statement of finaficial activities on a receivableé basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes bt not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is.received in advance of meefing: any performance-related conditions there:
is not unconditional.entitlement to the income and its recegnition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performarce-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income-is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in- the statement of finanéial activities in the period for which it is
receivable; and any abatement in respect-of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiemient to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet'in the restricted fixed asset fund, Capital grants
are recognised when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the-asset on which they are
expended.

Donations
Donatioris are-recognised on a receivable basis (where.there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised af fair value of the consideration recelved or
receivable in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy trust.has provided the goods or
serviges.

Donated fixed assets

Where the. donated good is a fixed.as3ét it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to imeasure this
reliably, ih which' case. the cost of the item to the donor is used. Thie .gain is recognised as.income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated
over the useful economic.iife in accordance with the academy irust's accounting policies.

Transfer of assets from existing academies

Where assets and liabilities are received on the fransfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the
transferred net assets are measured.at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at.the point when the
risks and rewards of ownershlp pass to the acaderny trust. Income- equal to the net assets transferred is
recognised within donafions and capital grant income.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised -once there is a Jegal or .constructive -obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it.is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The -costs.of each activity are made up. of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaklng each actlvxty Direct costs atributable to a
single- activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not.attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis conisistent with the use 6f resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the assef's use.

All'résources expended are inclusive of ifrecoverable VAT.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust fo raise funds for its charitable purposes and

includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust’s educational operationis to further its charitable.aims for the
benefit of the beneficiaries, including -support costs and costs relating to-the governance of the academy
trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Employee benefits

The best: estumate of the-expenditure required ta settle an obligation for termination benefils is recagnised
immediately as an expense when the Charitable.Company is démonstrably commitied to terminate. the
employment of an employee ar to provide termination benefits.

Intangible fixed assets and amortisafion

Intangible assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic. benefits are
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initialty
recognised at ¢ost and are subsequently méasured at cost net of .amortisation and any provision for
impairment.

Amoftisation is provided on intangible fixed. assets ‘at rates cdiculated to write off the ¢ost of each assef on
a straight-ine basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Purchased computer software 5 years

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depregiation and any provision for smpalrment Subsequent costs are cdpitalised only when it is probable
that such costs will generate future economic benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of financial activities as incurred.

Where-tangible fixed assets have been acqulred with the aid of specific grants; either from the governmient
or from the private sector, they are. included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the. funding that require the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited fo-a restricted fixed asset fund in the statément
of financial -acfivities and carried forward ih the balance sheét. Depreciation .on the. relevant assets Is
charged diréctly 1o the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on"such assefs. is ‘charged to the
unrestricted fund.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

.Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than fréehold tand and assets under constniction,
so as to write off the cost of assets |ess their residual values over their useful lives per the table below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on thése assets is not charged until
they are brought into use and réclassified to fréehold or leasehald land and’ buitdings.

Fraehold buildings 10 - 55 years (buildings element only)
Leasehold buildings 30 - 40 years
Long leashold land 125 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 5 years
"Motor vehicles 5 years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset'is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrylng value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfails between the carrying value of fixed
-assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impaimment losses are recogmsed in
the statement of financial activities.

‘Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance shegt date as a resuit of a past event, it
is probable that.a transfer of economic benefit will be required in -settlernent, and the amount of the
setflement can bé estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at thé amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The academy trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect -of financial
instruments.

Flnanma] assels and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the academy trust-becomes a party tc the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's. contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

All financiai assets and liabilities are initially measured -at transaction price (including transaction costs)
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A financial asset or financial liability that is
payable or receivable in one year is measured.at the undiscounted amount expected to be received or-paid
net of impairment; unless it is a financing fransaction. [f an agreement copstitutes. a financing transaction,
the financial asset. or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted
at-a market rate of interest for a simifar debt nstrument.

Financial assets and financial lfabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and the infention 1o either settle on & pet basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass_the tests set ot in Paragraph. 1 Schedule. 6 of the Firiance Act
2010 and therefore it meets. the definition of a charitable company for UK .corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exéempt from taxation in respect of ificome or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11-of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable: Gains Act 1992, to the extent that-such income or gains are. applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to emplayees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS" and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS"), which are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded. scheme and contributiens are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the-academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payrall. The contributidns are determined by the Gavernment
Actuary on the basis of quadrennijal valuations using a projected. unit- method. The TPS is an unfunded

muiti-employer scheme with no- underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently there is
insufficient information to use defined benefit accounting, it is therefore treated as a-defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in thé period to which they relate,

Differences between contributions. payable in'the year and: contriutions actually paid are shown as either-
accruals or prepayments.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held s‘ep"aratély. Pénsion scheme assets
-are measuyred, at fair value and liabilities are- measured on an actuarial basis. using the projected unit- credit
method and discounted at a rate-equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond. of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and
are updated at each reporting date. The amounts charged to net income are the current service costs and
the costs. of scheme introductions, benefit. changes, seftlements and curtailments. They are-included.as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the
statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on. the defined benefit obligation and
interest iIncome on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the faif value of the scherme assets at the.
‘beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between tfie
interest income on the scheme assets and the -actual retun on the scheme assets is recognised as other
comprehensive income. Actuarial gains.and losses are recognised immediately as other comprehensive
income.

:Fund accounting _
Unrestricted income funds represent those. resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objecls of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied:to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose,

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricled funds réceived with restrictions. imposed by the
funder/donor and iriclude grants from the Department for Education Group.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Prior period error ‘

The valuation for some freehold and leasehold properties-of academigs previously transferred into Harbour
Learning was based on net book value at the date of.transfer rather than a full valuation on the basis of-
DRC as.required as a best estimate of fair value in accordance with FRS 102..

‘This has resulted in a significant-error in-the values used upon theé transfer of these properties into the Trust
that: has required a. prior period -adjustment that affects the financial statements for the years ended 31
August 2019 and 31 August 2020.

The adjustment in the value of the propenrties, and a revised calculation of the Useful Economic Life (UEL)
of the various buildings transferred, has meant that the depreciation charged iri those years-and the impact
of the net gain on-the restricted fixed asset fund arising from the transfer in of the schools needs to be
revised.

‘The details of the prior period error are shown in note 4.
2  Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and j'udgem.enis are’ continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
-and .other factors, including expectations. of future events that are -believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances.

ritical accounti imates and as tions
The. academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning' the future. The resulling accounting
-estimates and assumpilons will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The present vaiue of the Local Government Pénsion Scheme defined bénefit liability depends on a nurnber
of factors that are determined-on an actuarial basis using a variety of-assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26; will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore, -a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 Mdrch 2019 has been used’ by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any
differenices between the figires derived ffom the roll forward ‘approach -ang a full actuarial valuation would
impact-on the carrying amqunt of the pension llability.

Useful economic lives of tangible assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful
economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives. and residual values are re-
-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based. on technological
Aadvancement, future, investmenits, economic utilisation and the physncal condilion of the assefs. See note
16 for the carrying amount of ‘the property plant and equipment, and the accounting policies for the useful
economic lives for each class of assets.

-42.-



HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

3  Statement of financial activities - comparative year information {as restated).

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Year ended 31 August 2020 Funds General Fixed asset 2020
Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000

Income and endowments from:. ‘
Donations and capital grants 171 - 968 4,139
Donations - transfer of existing academy into
the trust 205 (3.035) 11,105 8,275.
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 289 23,818 - 24,107
~ Funding for teaching school 337 104 - 441
Other-trading activities 137 - - 137
Investments 11 - - 11
Total 1,150 20,887 12,073 34,110
Expenditure on:.
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 839 25,325 1.801 27,965
- Teaching school 276 63 - 339
Total 1,415 25,388 1,801 28;304
Net income/(expenditure) 35 (4,501) 10,272 5,806
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension _
schemes - (1.227) - (1,227)
Net movement ih funds 35 (6,728) 10,272 4,579
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Prior period adjustment

The freehold and leasehold propérties of the Link Education Trust were transferred into Harbour Leafning
Truston 1 November, 2018. The valuation.used to value thiese properties at the date of: transfer-was net
book value based on an eariier desktop valuation not the full valuation on the basis of Depreciated
Replacement.Cost (DRC) required.

Similady the freehold properties of Academy of Lincoln Trust joined Healing Multi Academy Trust on 1
September 2019: The valuation used fo-value these properiies at the. date of transfer was. net book value
not the full valuation on the basis of (DRC) required.

This has resulted in a significant error in the values used upon the introduction of these properties into the
Trust that has required a prior period adjustment that affects the financial statements for. the years ended
31 August 2019 and 31 August 2020.

The adjustroent in the value of the properties,.and a revised calculation of the Useful Economic Life (UEL)
of the various buildings transferred, has meant that the depreciation charged in those years also needs to
be revised.

1 September -31 August

2018 2020
Reconciliation of funds Notes £000 £000
Funds as previously reported 19,232 25;265
Adjustments arising:
Recognition of additional assets. 1 3,738 2,376
Additional depraciation due to 2
recognition of additional assets (62) {154)
Funds as restated - 22,908 27,487

2020

Reconciliation of net income for the previous financial period Notes £000
Net income as previously reported 7,260
Adjustments arising:
Recognition of additionatl assets 1 {1,300)
Additional depreciation due fo
recognition of additional assets {154)
Net income as restated 5,808

! -44-



HARBOUR LEARNING TRUST (FORMERLY HEALING MULTI ACADEMY
TRUST)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

4

Piior period adjustment {Continued)
Notes to restatement

1 - Revaluation of FH and LH Properties at date of transfer. )

On 1 November 2018 the Link Education Trust joined Healing Multi- Academy Trust. The:three academies.
transferred freehold and leasehofd land and buildings into the Trust valued.at riet book value on the date of
transfer.

This has now been revilued at the Jate of transfer on @ DRC basis, as a. best estimate of the fair value,
and the total affect of this. adjustment in the year ended 31 August 2019 was to increase the value of
freehold properties transferred by £2,762,772 and the value of leasehold properties transferred by
£975,499. This increased the fund for fixed assets transferred on conversicn and the- donation for the
transfer of the existing academies into the Trust recognised .in the Statement of Financial Activities,
correctly valued in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102, by £3, 738 271.

On 1 September 2019 the Academy of Lincoin Trust joined Healing Multi Academy Trust. The two
academies transferred freehold land and buildings into the Trust valued using net book value at the date of
transfer.

Th:s has now been revalued at the date of transfer on a DRC basis, as a best estimate of the fair value,
and the total affect of this adjustment in the-year ended 31 August 2020 was to.reduce the:value of freehaold
properties transferred by£1,300,438. This reduced the fund for fixed assets transferred on conversion and
the donation for the transfer of the existing academies into the. Trust recognised in the Statement. of
Financial Activities, correctly valued in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102, by £1,300, 438.

2 - Revision.of depreciation arising as a resuit

There has been an additional depreciation charge of £137,000 in respect of the. transfer of the Link
Education Trust on 1 November 2018 due. to the recognition of additional assets and revision of the useful
economic lives of which £68,000 is attributabie ‘to freehold buildings. £69,000 to leasehold land and
buildings.

In addition, there has. been an additional depreciation charge of £79.000 in respect of fhe transfer of the
Academy of Lincoin Trust on 1 Septembér 2019 due to the recognition of additional assets and revision of
the usefu! economic lives of which £79,000 is attributable to freehold buildings, £nil to leasehold fand ard
buildings.

As.a result additional accumulated depreciation as at 31 August 2020 'was £216,000 (2019: £62.000).
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5

Donations and capital grants
Unrestricted
funds.
-£000

Donated fixed assets
Capital grants -
Cther donations -

Restricted
funds
£000.

162

1,182
14

T

1,358

Total Total
2021 2020
£000 £000
162 -
1,182 9268
14 171
1,358 1,139

Fixed asset additions in-the year xncluded fixtures, computers and equupment gifted ‘to the academy trust

with a fair value of £162k.

Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted  Restricted
funds funds
£000 £000
DfE / ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) - 20,639
Other DfE / ESFA grants:.
- Unjversal Infant free school meals - 194
- Pupil premium - 1,754
- Others - 1,910
- 24,497
Other government grants
Local authority grants- - 455
Spécial educational projects - 982
- 1,437
Teaching school income - 459
Other incoming resources 303. 56
303 515
‘303 ‘26,449

Total Total
2021 2020
£000 £000
20,639 19,350
184 204
1754 1,719
1,910 1,294
24,497 22,567
455 464
982 668
1,437 1,132
459 441
359 408
818 849
26,752 24,548

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some-grants received from
the Department for Education and ESFA, the academy trust's funding for Universal Infant Free Schoo!
Meals and Pupil Premium is no longer reported within the Other DfE/ESFA grants/Other DIE Group grants
line item, but as separate lines under the Other DIE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have

been reclassified.
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7

Other trading activities

Hire: of facilities

Catering income
Educational trips and visits
Other income

Investment income

Interest fiom short term depasits.

Expenditure

Staff costs
£000

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs 17,449

- Allocated support-costs 5.239

Teaching school

- Direct costs 151

- Allbcated suppott costs ' 56
22,895

Unrestricted
funds
£000

13

Unrestricted
funds.
£000

‘Non Pay Expenditure

Premises
£000

3.139

3,139

Net "mcomel(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

‘Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
.Amortisation of intangible fixed-assets

Net interest.on defined benefit pension liability

Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates in respect of both

audit and non-audit services are as follows:
- Audit

- Audit related assurarnice

- Other

Restricted Total Total
funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
- 13 16

- 2 2

- 42 -

- 13 119

- 70 137
‘Restricted Total Total
funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
- - 1
Total Total

Other 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
as-restated

1,342 18,791 17,322
1,768 10,1486, 10,643
206 357 248

- 56 99
3,316 29,350 28,304
2021, 2020

£000 £000

as restateq

137 115

1,216 1,224

7 7

226 212

26 15

13 10

9 -
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Charitable activities

Direct costs
Educational eperations
Teaching school

Support costs
Educational operations
Teaching school

Analysis of support costs’

-Support staff'costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Technology costs

Premises costs

Legal costs

Other support costs
Govemance costs

Uniestricted
funds
£000

43

Teaching
school
£000

56

Restricted Total
funds 2021
£000 £000
18,748 18,791

357 357

98,724 10,146

56 56

28,882 29,350
Educational Total
operations 2021
£000 £000
5,274 5,330
1,223 1,223

94 94

1,916 1,916

16 16

1,585 1,585

38 38

10,146 10,202

Total

2020

£000

as restated
17,322

248

Total

2020

£000

as restated
5,555

1,231

362

1,713

1,763
28
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Staff
Staff costs
Staff-costs during the year were:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Wages arid salaries 16,387 13,279
Social security costs 1,487 1.420
Pension costs 4,865 5,763
Staff costs - employees 22,739 20,462
Agency staff costs ' 59 37
Staff restructuring costs 97 142
' 22,895 20,641
Staff development and other staff costs: : 38 1
Total staff expenditure. 22,933 20,642
‘Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments’ ' 4 28 49
-Severance payments 68. a3
97 142

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
Included within staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments of £43,000
{2020: £3,000). Individually, the payments were: £3,000 and £10,000,

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust duting the yeai'was as follows:
2021 2020
Number Number
Teachers 255 235
Administration and support 405 ° 397
Management ' 13 14
673 646
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11 Staff (Continued)

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits. (excluding employer ‘pension .costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:
2021 2020
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 10 7
£70,001 - £80.000 4 2
£80,001 -'£90,000 2 1
£80,001 - £100,000 1 -
£100,0001 - £110,000 1 2

Key managenient personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the-senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {(including employer pension contributions
iand employer-national insurance contributiens) received by key management personnel for their services
to the academy trust was £489,421 (2020: £1 ,286,211).

12 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the-year:
human resources;
financial services;

premises services;
school improvement.

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

* histarical charges made by the Local Authority pre academy e.g. SLA.agreements;
» flat percentage of income (4.25% of GAG) for academies joining the MAT from 2015/16;
« other bases as arising. )

The amounts charged duringthe yearwere as follows: 2021 2020

£000 £000
Ermine Primary Academy ‘ 171 154.
‘Hartshalme Academy 128. 194
Healing Schoal - A Science Academy 237 216
Healing Primary School ' B1 41
Great Coates Primary School 80 52
Lincoln Castle Academy 372 266
St Giles Academy 168 197
‘William Barcroft Junier School 70 59
Woodiands Academy 125 157

1,392. 1,336
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13

14

15

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the Trustees has been paid remuneration -or has received other benefits from ‘an
employment with the academy trust. The accounting officer only receives remuneration in respect of
services they provide, underlakmg the rofe of d@ctounting officer under their coritract of employment, and not
in respect of their services as Trustee. M Knapton resigned as accounting officer -and trustee on 31
December 2020. J Nolan was appointed accounting officer on 1 January 2021 but is not a trustee.

The.vailue of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
M Knapton CEO:

Remuneration:-£38,494 (2020: £105;000-£110,000) )
Employer’s pension contributions £8,115 (2020. £25,000-£30,000).

During the year ended 31 August 2021, travel and subsistence claims totalling £100 (2020: £1,489) were
reimbursed to one trustees (2020: one).

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set-out in note 27.

Trostees and officers’ insurance

The academy-trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arranigement (RPA), an

alternative to insurance where UK govemment funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects:
Trustées and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst: on
academy trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It'is not possible to quantify the Trustees
and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Intangible fixed assets
Computer
software
£000
Cost
At 1 September 2020 and at 31 August 2021 54
Amortisation .
. At1 September 2020. 32
Charge for year 7
At 31 August 2021 39
Carrying amount .
At 31 August 2021 : 15
At 31 August 2020 22
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16 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold Leasehold GComputer Fixtures; Motor- Total

{and and land and  hardware fittings and vehicles

buildings  buildings equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 September 2020 as ‘
restated ) 26,833 13.779 477 880 1 41,970
Transfers (112). - - 112, - -
Additiehs - - 162 202 - 364
At 31 August 2021 26,721 13,779 639 1,194 1 42,334
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 as. _ _ ,
restated 2,463 939 459 674 1 4,536
Charge for the year 731 342 39 104 g 1.216
At 31 Augﬁst 2021 - .3,194 1,281 ‘ 498 778 1 5,762
Net book value _ _
Al 31 August 2021 23,527 12,498 141 416 - 36,582
At 31 August 2020 as
restated 24,370 12,840 18 206 - 37,434

Included within freehold land and buildings is '£2,380,000 (2020: £2,380,000 (as restated)) freehold {and
which is not depreciated.

17 Debtors

2021 2020

£000 "£000

Trade debtors 24 29

VAT recoverable 185 179
Other debfors 4 3
Prepayments and accrued income _ 389 440

602 651
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation arid social.sécurity

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income (see note 13)

19 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2020
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred incorme at 31 August 2021

Deferred income is income received in advance related: to
gfants;

2021 2020
£000 £000
497 444
375 345
1,536 1,457
492 461
2,900 2,707
2021 2020
£000 £000
196 147
147 56
(147} (56)
196 147
196 147

school fund batances, assessment fees and
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20 Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds as restated
General Annual Grant (BAG) 468 20,639 (20,081) - 1,026
Other DIE / ESFA grants:
-.Universal infant free school
meals - 194 {194) - -
- Pupil premium 285 1,754 {2,039) - -
~ Others - 1,910 (1,910) - -
Other government grants - 1,437 (1,437} - -
Teaching school 41 459 (413) 107 194
Other restricted funds - 61 {61) - -
Pension reserve (13,328) - {1,524) (3,758) (18,610)
{12,534) 26,454 (27,659) {3,651 (17,390)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited -on conversion 32,731 - {1,073) - 31,658
DfE group capital grants- 5,317 1,182 (120) - 8,379
Donated assets - 171 (30) - 141
38,048 1,353 {1,223) - 38,178
Total restricted funds 25,514 27,807 (28,882) (3,651) 20,788
Unrestricted funds
General funds 1,973 373 (468) (107) 1,771
Total funds 27487 28,180 {29.350) (3,758) .22,559
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20

Funds (Continued)-
The spagific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG)

The Gengral Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normai running costs of the Academy. Under the
funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the GAG
that it could carry forward at-31 August 2021.

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other DfE/ESFA grants include:
- Pupil Premium must be used ta support the cost of raising the attainment of disadvantaged pupils.
-+ Universal infanit free scheol meals funding must be used to provide free schiool meals to infani.
school pupils.

Other government grants
Other govemment.grants include:

+ SEN funding which represents grants received in order to provide additienal teaching resources for
children with special learning needs. The cost. of these teaching resources has been set against
the income.

= Early years funding received for 3-and 4 year olds.

= Other lower level grants and donations received for a particular purpose. Any relevant costs have:
been offset against this income.

Teaching Schaol _
Teaching school grant is received from the ESFA and National College-as part of the teaching school
status.

Other restricted funds A
Other-restricted funds represent lower level grants and donations received for a particular purpose. Any:
relevant costs have been offset-against this income.

Pension reserve ,

The Pension reserve represents the Academy Trust's net liability in respect of the Local Government
Pension Scheme. This is In deficit as-the. liabilities on the two schemés exceed assets held. The agreed
contribution rates for fulure years, detailed in note 26, aré set to reduce. this deficit in the years'tc come.

Restricted fixed assets
The Restricted Fixed asset Fund represents fixed .assets fundéd by capital grants, GAG and assels
transferred into the Trust from existing academies.

Transfers
Transfers in the year relate to the reclassification of teachlng school ‘balances, which were previously
treated as unrestricted funds to be classified as réstricted balances:
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20

Funds (Continued)

Funds prior year.

Balance:at
1 September
2019
£000
Restricted general funds as. restated
General Annual Grant (GAG) 503
Other DfE / ESFA grants:
- Universal infant free' schaol
meals -
- Pupil premium 179
- Others -
Other government grants -
Teaching school -
Transfer of existing academies
into Trust -
- Other rastricted funds -
Pension reserve (7.488)
(6.806)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on.conversion 22,696
DfE group capital grants 4,714
Capital expenditure from GAG 366

Total restricted funds 20,970
Unrestricted funds

General funds: 1,938
Total funds 22,908

income
£000

19,350

204
1,719
1,294
1,132

104

134
119
(3,169)

20,887

11,105
968

Expenditure
£000

{19,385)

(204)
(1,613)
(1,294)
(1,132)

(63)

(134)
{(119)
(1,444)

(25,388)

(978)
457)
{366)

'(‘1.,-801)

(27,189)

(1,115)

(28,308)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£000

(1,227y

{1,227)

‘Balance at
31 August
2020

£000

as restated
468

285

41

(13,328)
(12,534)

32,823
5,225

38,048
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20

Funds (Continued)

Total funds analysis by academy.

2021 2020
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows: £000 £000.
as restated
Ermine Primary Academy 15 68
Hartsholme Academy 15 12-
Healing Schopl - A'Science Academy 15 1,055
Healing Primary School 15 493
Great Coates Primary School 15 95
Lincoln Castle Academy 15 211
St Giles Academy 15 97
Wiltiam Barcroft Junior School 15 634
Woodlands Academy 15 92
Central services . 2,856 110
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 2,991 2,767
Restricted fixed asset fund 38,178 38,048
Pension reserve (18,610) {13,328)
Total funds 22,559 27.487

As per the reservés policy outiined in the. Trustees' Report, Trustées have considered individual academy
reserves within the Academy Trust with the plan geing forward to' manage funds.(at £16k per academny) ata
Trust level. These funds will beiter support @ new, consistent and student focused approach to scticol
improvement across.all academies.
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21

Funds (Continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other costs
educational .Other support Educational .excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs’ supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£000 £000 -£000 £000 .£000 £000
Etmine Primary Acaderny 1,735 330 101 258 2,424 2,523
Hartsholme Academy- 1613 289 234 326 2,462 2,363
Healing School - A Science - o )
Academy _ 3,879 755 376 581 5,591 5,687
Healing Primary School 980 203 99 . 183 1,465 1424
Great Coates Primary . . ‘
School 1,092 236 70 185 1,583 1,629
Lincoln Castle Academy 4,078 718 362 591 5,749 6,221
St Giles Academy 1,581 276 102 306 2,265 2,196
William. Barcroft Junior ] .
Schoo} 1,193 189 96 77 1,655 1,643
Woodlands Academy 1,123 223 83 218 1,647 3,024
Central services 262 2,178 21 803 3,264 1,879
17,536 5397 1,544 3,628 28,105 28,289
Analysis of net assets between funds
' Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Totail
Funds General Fixed Asset Funds
Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are-
represented by:
Intangible fixed asssts - - 15 15
Tangible-fixed assets - - 36,582 36,582
Current assets 1,771 4,120 1,581 7472
Creditors falling due within one year - (2,900) - {2,900).
Defined benefit pension fiability - {18;610) - (18,610)
Total net assets 1,774 38,178 22,559
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21  Analysis of net assets between funds {Continued)

Unrestricted Resfricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset’ Funds
£000 £000 £000. £000

Fund balances at'31 August. 2020-as

restated are represented by:

intangible fixed-assets - - 22 22
Tangible fixed assets - - 37434 37.434
Current assets 1,973 3,501 592 6,066
Creditors falling due within one year - {2,707} - (2,707)
Defined benefit pension liability - (13.328) - {13.328)
Total net assets 1,973 (12,534) 38,048 27,487

22 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the :academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Amourits due within one year 85 g1
Amaunts due between-one and five years 79 147
155 238
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23

24

25

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

2021
£000

Net (expenditure)/income. for the reporting period (as per the statement of

financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Net surplus on transfer of academy in the trust
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income.
{nterest receivable

Pension costs igss contributions payable.
Pension schemé finance costs

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Movements in working capital:
Detrease/(increase) in 5tocks
Decreasel{increase) in debtors
Increase in creditors

Transferred on conversion

Net cash provided by/(used.in) operating activities

Analysis of changes in net funds

Cash

Memibers’ liability

(1,170)

(1:353)

1,298
226
1,216

49
193

470

1 September  Cash flows

2020
£000 £000
5,404 1,459

2020
£000
as restated

5,806

(8.275)

(268)

1)
1,232
212
1,224
7

(7)
(47)
819

(459)

(461)

31 August
2021
£000

6,863

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the.assets of the company in the

event of it being wound up. whiile he or she is-a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be.a

member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before

he or she ceasés to be.a member.
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26

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong fo two principal pension schemes: the Teachers™ Pension Scheime
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by East.Riding Pension Fund .and Lincolnshire Pension

‘Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019,

-Contributions amounting to £392k were payable to the.schemes at 31 August 2021 {2020: £379k) and &ré

included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction. B

The Teachers' Pension Schame {TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemed by the

Teachers' Pensions 2014,

The TPS is-an unfunded scheme.and members contribute on-a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
The-Govemment Actuary, using norimal actuarial principles, conducts ‘a formal actuarial review -of the TPS

in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions, 2014

published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review. is to specify. the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions aboul the value of future costs;
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial-valualion of the TPS was.carried out as at
31 March 2016 and in accordance with theé Public-Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014 except it has been prepared following the Government's decision to pause-the operation of
the cost control mechanisms at the time when legal challenges were still pendxng The valuation report was

‘published by the Dispartment for Educafion on 5 March:2019.

The key elements.of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
« Tofal scheme liabilities for service (pensions currently payable and the estimated .cost of future
henefits) of £218 billion
= Value. of notiohal assets (esttmated future contributions together-with the notional mvestments held
at the valuation date)of £196 billion
+ Notional past service deficit of £22 billion
« Discount rate is 2.4%.in excess. of CPI

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% (including a 0.08%

administration levy). of pensionable pay from September 2019 onwards (compared to. 16:48% during
2019/20). The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted 10°£2,479k (2020: £2;336k).

The TPS is-a multi-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to.account for the scheme as
a defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan,
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26

Pension and similar obligations {Contifvued)
Local Government Penston Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benegfit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-

.administered funds. The fotal contributions are as.noted below. The agreed -contribution rates for future

years are 17.4-26.9% for employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event.of academy closure, -outstanding Local Government.Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions:
Thie following Information is based upon afull actuarial valuation of the funds at 31 March 2019 updated
to 31 August 2021 by the qualified independent.actuaries.

-Discount rate Rate of Rate of
for scheme increase’in ‘increase for
liabilities salaries pensions in
payment/
‘ inflation
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % % % %
East Riding Lacal Government Pension Scheme 1.65 17 38 3.1 29 22
Liricolnshire Local Gevernment Pension-Scheme 1.65 1.7 3.2 2.5 2.9 2.2
Mortality
The assumed life expeclations are:
Males Females

Retiring Retiring Retiring. Retiring
today in 20 today in 20
years years
2021 2021 202‘1‘ 2021

East Riding Local Government Pensfon Scheme 21.0 222 23.8 255
Lincolrishire Local Government Pension Scheme 21.5 22,5 238 25.3
Total contributions made 2021 2020
£000 £000
Employer's contributions 1,080 1,101
Employees’ contributions 305 285
Total contributions 1,395 1,386
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26 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities

Bonds

Property.

Cash and other liguid assets

Total fair value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,652,000 (2020: £42,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
.Net interest cost

Total operating charge

‘Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligdtions

At 1 September 2020
Current service cost
Interest cost

Emiployee ‘contributions
Actuarial loss

Benefits paid.

At 31 August 2021

2021
Fair value
£000

11,820
2,664
1,783

508

2020
Fair value.
£000

8,884
2,395
418

13,125

26,453
2,384.
458
305
6,178
(396)
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27

Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

2021

£000
At 1 Séptember 2020 13,125
Interest income 232
Return-en plan assets {excluiding net interest on the net defined pension liability) . 2,420
Employer contributions 1,080
Employee confributions 305
Benefits.paid (396)
Administration expenses (4)
At 31 August 2021 16,772

Related party transactions

Trustees' remuneration and expenses:is disclosed in note 13.

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which trustees
have an interest. Ali transactions involving ‘such orgamsauons are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions on or

. -after 1 April 20189,

‘Wilkin Chapman LLP Solicitors - a limited liability partnership of which Mr J Goolden (a member and

previous trustee of the Trust) is a member. Mr Goolden joined the: trust on the 26 September 2016, Mr
Goolden has-no involvement in the work completed by Wilkin Chapman LLP and a separaie engagement
fetter is used.

The Trust puichased legal representation, inciudiig HR support, from Wilkin Chapman LLP on an ongoing,
basis In September 2017 following a-best valué exercise carried out by the Trust. The costs relating te this
service during the year were £21,271 (2020:.£13, 737). There was.an outstanding balance .of. £Nil at 31
August 2021 (2020: £Nil).

In January 2022, the Trust faunched a procurenient exercise: to formally appoint a solicitor for the trust.

A local governor .at one of our academies, Mr A Whitehouse, provided SEN consultancy services to the
trust to the valug. of-£950 in the year through a company Mr Whitehouse is a. director with People First
Education Ltd.

Both thie arrangements with Wilkin Chapman and People First Education were declared to the ESFA and

_are recorded on the rélated parly database.
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Teaching school trading account
Direct income

External furiding

Direct costs

Direct staff costs

Staff development
Other direct costs

Other costs
Support staff costs
Other suppart costs

Total expendituie
Surplus from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021

2021

£000

£000

459

148

194

2020

£000

-£000

441

(339)

102

~B65~



